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3 INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

The directors submit herewith their report together with the separate audited financial statements of 3i
Infotech Holdings Private Limited ("the Company") for the year ended March 31, 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The main activity of the Company is that of investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results for the year are shown in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income set out
on page 8.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year under review (2021: Rs.Nil).

STATUS

The Company was incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius on November 20, 2006 under the Mauritian
Companies Act 2001.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

(i) adequate accounting records and maintenance of effective intemal control systems;

(i) the preparation of financial statements which fairly present the state of affairs of the Company as at the
end of the financial year and the resuits of its operations and cash flows for that period and which
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); and

(iii) the selection of appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements.

The external auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented.

The directors report that:

(i) adequate accounting records and an effective system of intemal controls and risk management have
been maintained;

(ii) appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have
been used consistently; and

(iii) International Financial Reporting Standards have been adhered to.

AUDITORS

The auditors, BDO & Co, has indicated their willingness to continue in office and will be automatically re-
appointed at the next Annual Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

X
Wm%héhmﬁ

&

Date: 17 July 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3t, 2022

The Board ensures that the Company is in compliance with the rules of the National Code of Corporate
Governance {the “Code™) as issued by National Committee on Corporate Governance on 13 February 2017 and
which is effective as from reporting year ended 30 June 2018. The Company follows the guidance in the Code
applicable for a Public Interest Entity (“PIE™).

Principle 1: Governance structure

3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited (the “Company™) is a private company limited by shares incorporated on
20 November 2006. The registered address of the Company is 5* Floor, Ebene Esplanade, 24 Bank Street,
Cybercity, Ebene. The Company is wholly owned by 3i Infotech Limited {(the “Holding Company™). a company
listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited and operating in the IT sector. The
Company’s activity is that of investment holding. International Proximity Management Services Limited, a
domestic company licensed by the Registrar of Companies (*ROC”), is the company secretary of the Company.
The constitution of the Company was adopted on 19 July 2012 (the “Constitution™). The Company is categorized
as a PIE since it has a total assets exceeding 500 million rupees during the two consecutive preceding years.

Effective Board

The Company is managed by its board of directors comprising of four members (the “Board”). The Board is
chaired from [ndia by the chairperson and meetings are attended by majority of the directors including a resident
director of the Company. Each director is appointed with the understanding of the amount of time, care that they
will need to devote to the Board and the industry knowledge required.

Rale of the Board

The Board plays a central supporting and supervisory role in the Company’s corporate governance structure.
provides leadership and guidance to the Company’s activities, and oversees the execution of its business
strategies. Specific matters reserved for the Board’s consideration and decision are:

» Determining the investment strategies, policies and business plans and monitor their implementation;

» Setting of appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Company’s strategic objectives;

» Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting system and compliance with
the relevant laws and standards, and that appropriate internal control systems are in place. including systems
for risk management, as well as financial and operational control;

» Monitoring and controlling the operations and financial performance of the Company through the
determination of the annual budget;

» Ensuring timely and accurate disclosure to and communications with stakeholders; and

» monitoring of investments and managing divestments on behalf of the Company.

Code of Ethics

The directors of the Company maintain the highest standards of integrity to approach and solve problems
ethically. In parallel, the Company has adopted the Code of Ethics of the Holding Company. Each director of
the Company provided his consent to the said Code of Ethics.

Job description or Position Statement

The directors exercise their duties to act in good faith and in the best interest of the Company in line with the
Companies Act and other laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Organisation Chart
The Company’s organization chart is attached as Annexure 1 to this report.
Due to its size and nature of activities the Company does not deem it necessary to have a website. The Company

follows the guidance from the website of the Holding Company (https://'www.3i-infotech.com) which considers
the Corporate Governance related policies.

Profile of the Directors

Aslam Koomar

Aslam Koomar is an Associate Director of [nternational Proximity (“IP”) in Mauritius and he currently leads the
Comptiance unit of IP. He has been responsible for the accounting and tax departments of IP for over ten years.
Prior to joining [P, he trained in accountancy and was admitted as a member of the UK Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in 1995, becoming a Fellow of the Association in 2000. He sits on the board of many
entities which invest in India, China and other Asian countries.

Ashok Shah

Ashok Shah is the chairperson of 3i Infotech Limited. Ashok Shah joined Life Insurance Corporation of [ndia
(LIC) as a direct recruit officer in 1977. In the more than three decades in LIC, he has served in all important
positions in Operations. He retired as Zonal Manager (Executive Director Cadre) at Delhi and was in charge of
LIC's premier Zone, Northern Zone for five years. Subsequently, he went on deputation to the National
Insurance Academy, Pune, as Chair Professor. In June 2010, he subsequently joined LIMRA (Life Insurance
Marketing and Research Association),a U.S. based entity as Director-India. Mr. Ashok Shah holds a bachelor's
degree in Science and a post graduate degree in Economics.

Harish Laxminarayan Shenoy

Harish Laxminarayan Shenoy is the Chief Performance Officer of 3i infotech Limited. He is a performance
driven Senior Executive offering 27+ Years’ strategic leadership in business management with operational
excellence, overseeing all business functions to ensure optimal performance. He recognized as an accomplished
change agent with success in transforming and improving operations through the development and
implementation of process, programs and strategies. He has exposure to the best practices in operations and
software deliveries for Global Bank, Insurance Companies and Corporates across the BFSI spectrum. Mr.
Shenoy is an MBA from Mumbai University through Narsee Monjee Institute of Management Studies, backed
with a Master’s Diploma in Computer Science and Graduation in Science from Mumbai Society.

Seshadri S Krishna

Seshadri Krishna joined 3i Infotech as a Chief Growth Officer for Americas, Europe, Middle East. and Africa.
He has over 30 years of experience in [T, BPS & Technology domains across North America, Europe, India &
APAC with repeated success in Digital/ Business Transformation. His ability to combine long-range strategic
planning and tactical execution to create differentiated value propositions, launch new businesses and drive
exponential and sustainable growth has transformed many organizations. Seshadri S Krishna is a consummate
leader, with experience in managing cross-functional teams across geographies with goal congruence and
collaboration leading to scalable high margin repeat business.

As an ardent fan of Digital Transformation since the early 2000s, Seshadri Krishna often plays the role of a
strategic advisor to the CXOs of client organizations. His ability to understand the inflection points of
transformation across business processes leads him to design technology-enabled solutions that drive genuine
business outcomes. Sax over his span of career has helped enhance Enterprise Value across HCL group, PE
firms, Tech Mahindra (Satyam), Aditya Birla Minacs (ITES company of the AB Group) & ATOS. An Alumnus
of BITS Pilani, Seshadri Krishna calls two Capitals - NCR, Delhi & Washington D.C. —as homes.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Management assessment

The Company is compliant with Principle | of the Code of Corporate Governance given the nature and business
activity of the Company.

Principle 2: The structure of the board and its committees
Board Composition

The Board is composed of directors who have gathered a wide array of knowledge and experience in different
sectors. Every director is expected to positively contribute to the Board based on their professional background
and expertise.

The Board considers that its current size and composition is appropriate for the type of activity in which the
Company is engaged and for the effective discharge of the Board's responsibilities.

For the board meetings held during the financial year. majority of the Directors were present. It may be noted
that beside the directorship held in 3i Infotech group companies, directors (except for Mr Aslam Koomar} of
the Company do not hold any directorship in any other company, based in Mauritius.

Due to the nature of the activities of the Company, no sub-committees {(Audit Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee, Board Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee, or Nomination Committee) have been set up.
The Board collectively considers the measures in respect of the Code of Corporate Governance. The Board
assumes responsibility for leading and controlling the organisation, meeting all legal and regulatory
requirements.

The Board currently comprises of 4 directors (resident and non-resident) who exercise independence of mind
and judgement with no independent directors under this Company. The Board has appropriate balance of skills,
experience, independence and knowledge of the Company which enables it to perform its respective duties and
responsibilities effectively.

The Company Secretary

International Proximity Management Services Limited has been appointed as the Company Secretary since
incorporation of the Company in accordance with its Constitution.

The role and responsibilities of the Company Secretary are as follows:

¢ Provide guidance to the Board as to its duties, responsibilities and powers;

s Inform the Board of all relevant legislations pertaining to meetings of directors and shareholders. reporting
at any meetings, filing of any documents required and failure to comply with such legisiation;

e Ensure proper recording of minutes and resolutions including proper maintenance of the statutory registers;

e Certify in the annual financial statements that all returns as required under the Companies Act 2001 have
been filed with the Registrar; and

¢ Filing of the financial statements with the ROC.

Management Assessment

The Company is compliant with Principle 2 of the Code of Corporate Governance as it is controtled and
managed by people who devote adequate time to the operational and strategic matters and assume their
responsibilities in adhering to the legal and regulatory requirements, except for certain criteria as highlighted
under the statement of non-compliance.



31 INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
3
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Principle 3: Director’s appointment procedures

Appointment, Election and Re-election

The directors of the Company are appointed in line with its Constitution. As per section 5.1 of the Constitution,
the directors shall have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person to be a director to fill a
casual vacancy. The board members of the Company possess relevant quatification and experience and
sufficient knowledge of the financial and industry sector in general.

The following factors are considered when appointing a director:

e Skills, knowledge and expertise of the proposed director;

»  Amount of time the proposed director is able to devote to the board; and

* Qualifications and experience of the proposed director.

A due diligence exercise is carried out by International Proximity Management Services Limited to determine
the suitability of the proposed director based on his or her qualifications and experience and whether he or she
meets the fit and proper test.

No permanent chairperson has been appointed for the Company. At each meeting, the directors appoint one
among them to act as the chairperson for that specific meeting.

Re-election
The directors are subject to re-election by the shareholder at the annual meeting.
Continuous Professional Development

The directors are of sufficient calibre and have the necessary expertise. The Board is apprised of all the
developments relating to the [T sector.

Planning for Succession
Upon any change in directorship the Board assumes the responsibilities for succession planning as well as for
the appointment of new directors. All directors, not limited to newly appointed directors are provided with day

to day operational updates pertaining to the Company by the administrator and Company Secretary,
International Proximity Management Services Private Limited, acting for and on behalf of the Company.

Management Assessment

The Company is compliant with Principle 3 of the Code of Corporate Governance as the above-mentioned
measures are deemed adequate given the nature and business activity of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Principle 4: Directors’ duties, remuneration and performance
Duties

All the directors on the Board are fully apprised of their fiduciary duties as required under the Companies Act
2001 and other iaws and regulations and they use care, skill and diligence while exercising the same. The Board
oversees the way the Company operates and ensures that sound policies already agreed upon are followed. The
Board regularly monitors and abide with the Code of Conduct of its Holding Company.

Code of Ethics

As previously mentioned in the report, the directors of the Company maintain the highest standards of integrity
to approach and solve problems ethically. In parallel, the Company has adopted the Code of Ethics of the
Holding Company. Each director of the Company has provided his consent to the said Code of Ethics.

Allocation of Time

Each director is appointed with due consideration to the amount of time and care that they can devote to the
Board.

Conflict of Interest
The directors must declare the nature of their interest(s), depending on the following circumstances:

(a) at the meeting of the directors at which the question of entering into the contract or arrangement is first taken
into consideration;

(b) if the director is not at the date of the meeting interested in the proposed contract or arrangement. then at the
next meeting held afier he becomes interested; or

(c) in a case where the director becomes interested in a contract or arrangement after it is made, then at the first
meeting of the directors held after he becomes so interested.

Directors disclose promptly any direct and indirect interest in contracts or transactions with the Company. The
Company Secretary maintains an interest register. which is available for consultation to the Holding Company
upon written request to the Company Secretary.

Supply of Information on &8 Timely Manner

Notices, agenda and board papers are sent to the directors within a reasonable time frame prior to a particular
meeting.

The Company Secretary has effective information, information technology and information security policies
and strategies in place. The Company Secretary ensures that the correct information flows within the Board and
provides accurate, timely and clear information to the Board as and when required. The Directors ensure strict
confidentiality with respect to information obtained and shared while exercising their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Remuneration

Mr. Aslam Koomar, being one of the directors of the Company. is also an officer of the Company Secretary of
the Company, that is International Proximity Management Services Limited. International Proximity
Management Services Limited is entitled to administration fees in respect of services rendered to the Company
as per existing service agreement in place.

The remuneration policy of the directors of the Company is govemed by sections 5.2 of the Constitution.
Currently, no directors on the Board are entitled to a remuneration. No other remuneration has been paid to the
directors in form of share options or bonuses or bonuses associated with organisational performance.

Management assessment

The Company has adequate measures in place to comply with Principie 4 of the Code of Corporate Governance
given its nature and business activity, except for certain criteria as highlighted under the statement of non-
compliance,

Principle 5: Risk Governance and Internal Control
Risk Governance

The Board is ultimately responsible for the governance of risk, the Company’s system of internal control and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the various risks faced by the Company. Further, risks and uncertainties are managed at the level
of the board of directors of the Company.

Considering the size and nature of its business activities, that is being an investment holding entity with no
direct employees. the Company does not have a whistle blowing policy in piace. Instead, all the Company’s
affairs are addressed to the Board.

The Board is responsible for the day-to-day management as well as the Company’s strategic, financial,
operational and compliance risk matters. Further, the Board has developed and implemented appropriate
framework and effective process for the sound management of risk. The system of internal controls which are
in place seem to cover all potential risk aspects. During the year under review there was no risk or deficiency
in the Company’s system of internal controls.

Management Assessment

The Company has the requisite risk mechanisms in place which are in line with its business activity and is
therefore compliant with Principle 5 of the Code of Corporate Governance, except for certain criteria as
highlighted under the statement of non-compliance.

Principle 6: Reporting with Integrity

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, comprising
the Company’s statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“"TFRS") and the Companies Act 2001. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were filed with the ROC on 28 October 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

The directors’ responsibility inciudes designing. implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Management assessment

The Company is compliant with Principle 6 of the Code of Corporate Governance.

Principle 7: Audit

The auditors of the Company are M/s. BDO & Co. M/s. BDO & Co. have in built processes to observe the
highest standards of business and professional ethics. They are responsibie for reporting on whether the financial

statements are fairly presented.

BDO & Co. was re-appointed as the statutory auditors for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 by way of a
set of shareholder's resolutions in lieu of holding a shareholder’s meeting in September 2021.

The responsibility of monitoring the internal control systems in place has been kept at the Board level. given
the size and complexity of the Company. As such, no internal audit function has been established.

Management assessment

The Company is compliant with Principle 7 of the Code of Corporate Governance.

Principle 8: Relations with Shareholders and other key Stakeholders

3i Infotech Limited, the sole shareholder has confirmed the appointment of the existing directors and the auditors
of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. Appointment of new director (s) is approved by the sole
shareholder as and when there is any appointment of new director(s).

The Company will call an annual meeting from shareholder not later than 6 months after the balance sheet date
of the Company. Written notice of the time and place of a meeting of member shall be sent to the member
entitled to receive notice of the meeting and to every director, secretary and auditor of the Company not less
than 7 days before the meeting.

Management assessment

The Company is compliant with Principle 8 of the Code of Corporate Governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE UNDER SECTION 75(3) OF THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ACT
2004

We, the Directors of 3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited confirm that to the best of our knowledge that 3i
Infotech Holdings Private has compiled with all its obligations and requirements under the NCCG other than for
the followings:

Reasons for Non-

Principle | Description Recommended (Specific) Disclosure | Compliant/Proposed Action Plan
2 Boards and its | All organisalions should have, at a | Due to the size and nature of the
Committees minimum, an Audit Committee. If an | activities of the Company, no sub-
organisation does not have an Audit | committees (Audit Committee.
Committee, it should explain its | Corporate Governance Committee,
reasons. Board Risk Committee,
Board committees should comprise | Remuneration Committee, or
only members of the Board and should | Nomination Committee) have been
regularly make formal reports to the | set up.
Board. All board committees should | The Board collectively considers the
have at least three members, and the | measures in respect of the Code of
majority should be non-executive and | Corporate Governance. The Board
where possible, independent. In the | assumes responsibility for leading
case of the Audit Committee, the | and controlling the organisation,
majority of the members should be | meeting all legal and regulatory
independent. requirements.

4 Directors’ The Board should report in the annual | Appropriate mechanism will be put
duties, repori on how the performance | in place to evaluate the effectiveness
remuneration | evaluation of the Board and iis | of Board and its directors on a
and individual  directors  has  been | periodic basis.
performance conducted.

5 Risk The corporate govemance or risk | Considering the size and nature of its
Governance section of the annual report should | business activities, that is investment
and Internal include, inter alia, report on whistle- | holding, the Company does not have
Control blowing rules and procedures. a whistle blowing policy in place.

There are no employees and daily
operational matters for the Company.
All the Company's business matters
are addressed to (and handled by) the
Board. The Board is responsible for
the governance of risk and for
determining the nature and extent of
the principal risks it is willing to take
in achieving its strategic objectives
and the Board believes it has in place
the relevant structures and processes
in place for identifying and managing
risk.

..........................................

Aslam Koomar
Director

Date: | Jufj 2027
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SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

We certify that, to our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of Companies all
such returns as are required of 3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited ("the Company") under the Mauritian
Companies Act 2001 for the year ended March 31, 2022.

- s M

Jfor International Proximity Management Services Limited
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date: { 3} July Qo1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of 3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited (the "Company"), on pages
8 to 45 which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the financial statements on pages 8 to 45 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Mauritian Companies
Act 2001.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company’s functional currency is US Dollars while its presentation currency is Mauritian Rupees. The
foreign exchange gains / losses arising on translation from functional to presentation currency, for current
and previous years, have been recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and in Retained Earnings rather
than in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) and Foreign Currency Translation Reserves (“FCTR”). This
constitutes a departure from IAS 21. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about
the carrying amount of FCTR and the amount that should have been recorded in OCI because management
did not provide us with the relevant workings. Consequently, we were unable to determine the adjustments
needed to these items.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ [nternational Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the "IESBA Code”). We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the [ESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the director's report but does not inciude the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

BDO & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants in Mauritius, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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5(a)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

To the Shareholder of 3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited (continued)
Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the
Mauritian Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€rror.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

C Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

C Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by directors.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

To the Shareholder of 3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritian Companies Act 2001
The Mauritian Companies Act 2001 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report on the
following matters. We confirm that:

* We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company, other than in our capacity as auditor, and
dealings in the ordinary course of business.

* We have obtained all information and explanations we have required, except for those described in the
'Basis for Qualified Opinion' section of our report.

¢ In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our
examination of those records, except for the matter described in the 'Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section
of our report.

Mauritian Financial Reporting Act 2004

Our responsibility under the Mauritian Financial Reporting Act 2004 is to report on the compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance ("Code") disclosed in the annual report and assess the explanations given for
non-compliance with any requirement of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made con
corporate governance in the annual report, the public interest entity has, pursuant to section 75 of the
Mauritian Financial Reporting Act 2004, complied with the requirements of the Code.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the Company's shareholder, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the
Mauritian Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's shareholder those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company's shareholder as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

=D oD
—"

BDO & Co
Chartered Accountants

Tk

Port Louis, Lilawattee Tarachand, FCA, FCMA
Mauritius. Licensed by FRC

17 AUG 2023
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31 INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

6
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT MARCH 31, 2022
Restated Restated *
March 31, March 31, April 1,
Notes 2022 2021 2020
Rs. Rs. Rs.
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary companies 5 4,777,523,314 2,271,350,118 2,270,624,646
Deposit on investments 6 237,013,406 243,996,445 244,970,880
Financial assets at fair value through
profit & loss 7 3,842,649,931 3,125,898,441 2,678,637,234
§,857,186,651 5,641,245,004 5,194,232,760
Current assets
Financial assets at amortised cost 8 618,982,376 552,917,812 534,487,665
Prepayments 4,220 3,858 76,690
Cash and cash equivalents 9 901,617 137,351 650,854
619,888,213 553,059,021 535,215,209
Total assets 9,4771,074,864 6,194,304,025 5,729.447 969
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Stated capital 10 6,258,371,598 6,258,371,593 6,258,371,598
Other equity 10(b) 1,072,078,780 1,072,078,780 1,072,078,780
Revenue deficit 10(c) (2,269,496,220)  (4,938,871,405)  {4,963,264,850)
Total equity 5,060,954,158 2,391,578,973 2,367,185,528
Noun-current liabilities
Redeemable convertible preference share 11 4,414,801,800 3,801,775,433 3,361,288,766
Current liabilities
Other payables 12 1,018,967 836,310 845,225
Current tax liabilities 13(a) 299,939 113,309 128,450
1,318,906 949,619 973,675
Total equity and liabilities 9,477,074,864 6,194,304,025 5,729,447,969

* Refer Note- 2] in respect of prior year restatement

These separate financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on

13 J™Mly 1@and signed on its behalf by:

Name:
Director

TEh shenﬂ

Name: AS1am
Director

The notes on pages 12 to 45 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Independent auditor's report on pages 5 to 5(b).

09 A



JIINFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
Restated *
March 31, March 31,
Notes 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
INCOME
Interest income 18(b)(ii} 4,390,385 4,088,970
EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 16 (2,039,290) (1,899,087)
Professional fees 17 (947,629) (950,160)
{2,986,919) (2,849,247)
Fair value gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 7 424,220,784 353,919,738
Reversals of impairment losses
on investments in subsidiaries 5 2,506,173,196 -
Profit before foreign exchange 2,931,797,446 355,159,461
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) 14 60,257,876 (53,103,553)
Profit before finance cost 2,992,055,322 302,055,907
Finance cost 15 (322,285,648) (277,534,012)
Profit before taxation 2,669,769,674 24,521,895
Income tax charge 13(b) (394,489) (128,450)
Profit for the year 2,669,375,185 24,393,445
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,669,375,185 24,393,445

* Refer Note- 21 in respect of prior year restatement

The notes on pages 12 to 45 form an integral part of the financial statements.
Independent auditor's report on pages 5 to 5(b).
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3I INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

9
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
Restated
March 31, March 31,
Notes 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 2,669,769,674 24,521,895
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 15 322,285,648 277,534,012
Net foreign exchange (gain)/losses 14 (60,257,876) 53,103,553
Reversal of impairment losses on financial assets 5 (2,506,173,196) -
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 7 (424,220,784) (353,919,738)
Changes in working capital:
- Prepayments (362) 72,832
- Other payables 537,937 2,075
Cash generated from operating activities 1,941,040 1,314,630
Tax paid 13(a) (207,859) (143,591)
Net Cash generated from operating activities 1,733,181 1,171,039
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary 5 - (725,472)
Refund of deposit on investments 6 6,983,039 974,435
Loans granted to related parties (7,951,954) (1,933,505)
Net cash used in investing activities (968,915) (1,684,542)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivaleats 764,266 {513,503)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At April 1, 137,351 650,854
Increase/(Decrease) 764,266 (513,503)
At March 31, 9 901,617 137,351

The notes on pages 12 to 45 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Independent auditor's report on pages S to 5(b).



31 INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

10

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2622

2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited (the "Company") was incorporated in the Republic of
Mauritius on November 20, 2006. The Company's activity is that of investment holding. Its registered
office is 5th Floor, Ebene Esplanade, 24 Cybercity, Ebene.

These separate financial statements will be submitted for consideration and approval at the
forthcoming Annual Meeting of shareholder of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the scparate financial statements of the
Company are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of 3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited comply with the Mauritian
Companies Act 2001 and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and Financial
Reporting Act 2004. These financial statements are that of an individual entity. The financial
statements are presented in Mauritian Rupees (MUR) and all values are rounded to the nearest rupees.

Where necessary, comparative figures have been amended to conform with change in presentation in
the current year. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss are stated at fair value.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting
period

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts : The amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 amend
requirements relating to changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of financial assets,
financial liabilities and lease liabilities, hedge accounting and disclosures. The amendment to I[FRS 4
enables an insurer applying the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 to apply a practical expedient to
account for a change in the contractual cash flows that are required by IBOR reform by updating the
effective interest rate to reflect any change arising from the reform. The amendments have no impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures : The amendments to [FRS 9, IAS 39, [FRS 7, IFRS 4 and
[FRS 16 amend requirements relating to changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of
financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities, hedge accounting and disclosures. The
amendment to IFRS 7 requires a company te make additional disclosures in its financial statements so
that investors can better understand the effects of IBOR reform on that company. The amendments
have no impact on the Company's financial statements,



31 INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

11

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting
period (cont'd)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 (cont'd)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments to IFRS 9, [AS 39, IFRS 7, I[FRS 4 and IFRS 16
amend requirements relating to changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities, hedge accounting and disclosures. The amendments to
IFRS 9 enable a company to apply a practical expedient to account for a change in the contractual cash
flows that are required by IBOR reform by updating the effective interest rate to reflect any change
arising from the reform. The amendments to IFRS 9 enable (and require) companies to continue hedge
accounting in circumstances when changes to hedged items and hedging instruments arise as a result
of changes required by the IBOR reform, by requiring companies to amend their hedging relationships
to reflect:

designating an alternative benchmark rate as the hedged risk; or

changing the description of the hedged item, including the designated portion, or of the hedging

instrument.
The amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: The amendments to [FRS 9, IAS 39, I[FRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 amend
requirements relating to changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of financial assets,
financial liabilities and lease liabilities, hedge accounting and disclosures. The amendment to IFRS 16
enables a company to apply a practical expedient to account for a lease modification required by the
[BOR reform. The amendments have no impact on the Company,s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

Covid 19 related rent concessions: Effective June 1, 2020, further to [FRS 16 amendment to provide a
practical expedient for lessees accounting for rent concessions that arise as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The amendment provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The amendments have no impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
Certain standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations have been issued that are

mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 or later periods, but which the
Company has not early adopted.



31 INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(cont'd)

At the reporting date of these financial statements, the following were in issue but not yet effective:

Effective date January 1, 2022

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 : Extension of an optional exemption permitting a
subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter after its parent to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to [FRSs.
A similar election is available to an associate or joint venture.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

Reference to the Conceptual Framework: The amendment updates a reference in IFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for
business combinations.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: The amendment clarifies which fees an entity
includes when it applies the ' 10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, FPlant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use: The amendments prohibit an entity
from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from
selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

YAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling a Contract: The amendments specify which costs should be
included in an entity’s assessment whether a contract will be loss-making.

1AS 41 Agriculture

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: The amendment removes the requirement for
entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a
present value technique.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(cont'd)

Effective date January 1, 2023

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

IFRS 17 creates one accounting model for all insurance contracts in all jurisdictions that apply IFRS.
IFRS 17 requires an entity to measure insurance contracts using updated estimates and assumptions
that reflect the timing of cash flows and take into account any uncertainty relating to insurance
contracts. The financial statements of an entity will reflect the time value of money in estimated
payments required to settle incurred claims. Insurance contracts are required to be measured based
only on the obligations created by the contracts. An entity will be required to recognise profits as an
insurance service is delivered, rather than on receipt of preriums. This standard replaces [FRS 4-
Insurance Contracts.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent: Narrow-scope amendments to [AS 1 to clarify
how to classify debt and other liabilities as current or non-current.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies: The amendments require companies to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting policies, with additional
guidance added to the Standard to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy
information with examples of when accounting policy information is likely to be material.

IAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Definition of Accounting Estimates: The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates, by replacing the definition of a
change in accounting estimates with a new definition of accounting estimates. Under the new
definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. The requirements for recognising the effect of change in accounting
prospectively remain unchanged.

IAS 12 Income Taxes

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction: The amendment
clarifies how a company accounts for income tax, including deferred tax, which represents tax payable
or recoverable in the future. In specified circumstances, companies are exempt from recognising
deferred tax when they recognise assets or liabilities for the first time. The aim of the amendments is
to reduce diversity in the reporting of deferred tax on leases and decommissioning obligations, by
clarifying when the exemption from recognising deferred tax would apply to the initial recognition of
such items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.

2.1

2.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont’d)
Amendment for which effective date has been deferred indefinitely until further notice

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28): Narrow scope amendment address an acknowledged inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28 (2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Sale or Contribution of Assels between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to

IFRS 10 and IAS 28) : Narrow scope amendment to address an acknowledged inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in TAS 28 (2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

Where relevant, the Company is still evaluating the effect of these Standards, amendments to
published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective, on the presentation of its financial
statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Investment in subsidiary companies

Separate financial statement of the invesior

In the separate financial statements of the investor, investment in subsidiary companies are carried at
cost. The carrying amount is reduced to recognise any impairment in the value of individual
investment.

The requirements of IAS 36 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Company’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Consolidated financial statements
These are the separate financial statements with information about the Company as an individual
company and do not contain consolidated financial information as the parent of a group.



31 INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.

22

2.3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Investment in subsidiary companies (cont'd)

Consolidated financial statements (cont'd)

3i Infotech Holdings Private Limited elected not to present consolidated financial statements. The
Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Infotech Limited, a company incorporated in the India.
The election is in accordance with the exemption under paragraph 4(a) of IFRS 10 - Consolidated
Financial Statements as 3i Infotech Limited prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 that are in line with International Financial Reporting Standards and are
available for public use.

These consolidated financials can be obtained on the website of 3i Infotech Limited, www.3i-
infotech.com

Details on the investment in subsidiary company are included under note 5.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’'s statement of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables
that do not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of

assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

* The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)

Classification of financial assets (cont'd)

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

» The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets.

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Company may make the following irrevocable election / designation at
initial recognition of a financial asset:

» The Company may immevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met.

« The Company may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI
criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch,

(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that
are credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected
credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt
instrument on ititial recognition,

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial
asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments {cont'd)

Classification of financial assets (cont'd)

(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method (cont'd)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCL For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Company recognises interest income
by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
initial recognition. The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the
financial asset subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "interest Income" line item {note
18).

(it} Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL. Specifically :

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an
equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business
combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting mismatch’)
that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging
relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the line item "Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss " (Note 7).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt
instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOC], lease receivables, trade receivables and
contract assets, as well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Company always recognises lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables, contract
assets and iease receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where
approvriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equat to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
eeannmic infarmation that relate to the Camnanv’e enre aneratinng



31 INFOTECH HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

19

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (cont'd)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

* An actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating.

+ Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor,
or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its
amortised cost,

* Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

* An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor.
* Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor.

* An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

* The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

* Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there are no past due amounts.
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2.3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (cont'd)
The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
(ii) Definition of default
The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk

management purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

* When there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor.

+ Information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

* Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

= A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

» The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider.

» It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

» The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments {cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
(iv) Write-off policy

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which the simplified
approach was used.

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
2.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses {cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument which the
Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but
is transferred to retained earnings.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCL, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument which the
Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but
is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments {cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses (cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)

Compound instruments

The component parts of convertible loan notes issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for a similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible loan note, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the
lives of the convertible loan notes using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee contracts
issued by the Company, are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out
below.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses (cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)

Financial liabilities (cont'd)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i)} contingent
consideration of an acquirer

in a business combination, (ii} held for trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if either:

* It has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term

* On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking

* It is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if either:

* Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise

» The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis

* It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging
relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that Hability is
recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred
to retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses (cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)

Financial liabilities (cont'd)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i} contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
(if) held-for-trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective

interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost
at the end of each reporting period, the fareign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments, These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit
or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship. For those which
are designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of

equity.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that
are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or
losses and is recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Financial instruments (cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses {cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (cont'd)

When the Company exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Company accounts for
substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective interest rate is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1} the carrying
amount of the liability before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after
modification is recognised in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains and

lnocoac

Derivative financial instruments

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid contract that also includes a non-derivative host —
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alone derivative.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts with a financial asset host within the scope of IFRS 9 are
not separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured as either amortised
cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts with hosts that are not financial assets within the scope of
IFRS 9 (e.g. financial liabilities) are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

If the hybrid contract is a quoted financial liability, instead of separating the embedded derivative, the
Company generally designates the whole hybrid contract at FVTPL.

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or non-current liability if the remaining
maturity of the hybrid instrument to which the embedded derivative relates is more than 12 months and
is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months.

The line item "Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” (Note 7} in the statement of
financial position relates to a hybrid contract since it contains both a non derivative host (being the
principal amount of a Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares "RCPS") and an embedded
derivative (being the option to convert the RCPS into ordinary shares). The host is an asset within the
scope of [FRS 9 and thus the whole of the hybrid instrument has been classified as financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss given that the instrument is held to collect contractual cash flows but
those contractual cash flows are not solely payment of principal and interest. Please refer to note 7 for
more details.
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2.6

2.7

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax
The current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date and are expected to apply in the period when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available against which deductible temporary differences and losses can be utilised.

Share capital

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable or redeemable only at the
Company's option, and any dividend are discretionary. Discretionary dividends thereon are recognised
as distributions within the equity upon approval by the Company's shareholders.

Mandatorily redeemable preference shares are classified as liabilities.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources that can be reliably estimated will be
required to settle the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using Mauritian Rupees (Rs.), however USD
is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("functional
currency").

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the profit or loss within ‘finance income or cost.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date the fair value was determined.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units).

2.10 Revenue recognition

Revenues earned by the Company are recognised on the following bases:

« Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

» Dividend income - when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

»  Other income - as it accrues unless collectibility is in doubt.
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3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including;

+ market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest risk};
* credit risk;

* liquidity risk; and

* concentration risk;

A description of the significant risk factors is given below together with the risk management policies applicable.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures primarily with respect
to the Euro, and the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary

items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.

At March 31, 2022, if the rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against Euro and US dollars with all other
variables held constant, based on historical observations, post-tax loss for the year would have been Rs. 1,985,309
(2021: Rs.5,255,471) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of Euro and
US dollars denominated net trade and other payables over cash and cash equivalents.

Euro UsD Total
2022 Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets
At Amortised Cost
Financial assets at amortised cost (Note §) - 618,982,376 618,982,376
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) - 901,617 901,617

At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Redeemable Convertible Preference Share
{Note 7} - 3,842,649,931 -

Financial liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Redeemable Convertible Preference Share

(Note 11) (1,096,467,579) (3,318,334,221) {4,414,801,800)

Other payables (Note 12) - (1,018,967) (1,018,967)
(1,096,467,579) 1,143,180,736 (3,795,936,774)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)
Market risk (cont'd)
Currency risk (cont'd}
Euro USD Total
2021 Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets
At Amortised Cost
Financial assets at amortised cost (Note 8) - 552,917,812 552,917,812
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) - 137,351 137,351
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Redeemable Convertible Preference Share
(Note 7) - 3,125,898,441 -
Financial liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Redeemable Convertible Preference Share
{Note 11) (974,150,498) (2,827,624,936) (3,801,775,433)

Other payables (Note 12)

(974,150,498)

(836,310) (836,310
850,492,358 3,249,556,580)

The 5% change in rate was derived from the average fluctuation in the respective foreign currencies for the last
five years based on historical observation. Impact of 5% fluctuation is as follows:

2022

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)
Redeemable Convertible Preference Share
Financial assets at amortised cost (Note 8)

Financial liabilities
Redeemable Convertible Preference Share
Other payables (Note 12)

Net impact

2021

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)
Redeemable Convertible Preference Share
Financial assets at amortised cost (Note 8)

Financial liabilities
Redeemable Convertible Preference Share
Other payables (Note 12}

Net impact

Euro USD Total
Rs. Rs. Rs.
- 38,319 38,319
- 163,312,622 163,312,622
- 26,306,751 26,306,751
- 189,657,692 7,692
(46,599,872) (141,029,204) (187,629,077)

; 43,306) (13:306)
—__(48,599,872) __mJTST‘( 072,510 (187,672,383)

(46,599,872) 48,585,181 1,985,309
- 5,837 5,837
- 132,850,684 132,850,684
- 23,499,007 23,499,007
- 156,355,528 136,355,528
(41,401,396) (120,174,060) (161,575,456)
- 35,543 (35,543)
{A1,401,396) (120,209,603 (161,610,999)
(41,401,396) 36,145,925 (5,255,471)
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3l

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Financial risk factors (cont'd)

Market risk (cont'd)
Currency risk (cont’d)

The above currency profite excludes prepayments amounting to Rs.4,220 (2021: Rs.3,858) from financial assets
and current tax liabilities Rs.2035,387 (2021: Rs.113,309).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the value of the Company’s
interest-bearing financial liabilities and assets. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date the Company was not exposed to any interest-bearing financial liabilities with floating rate of
interest.

At March 31, 2022, if the interest rates on interest bearing borrowings had been 1% lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 44,148,018 (2021: Rs.38,017,754)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of lower/higher interest expense on floating rate interest bearing borrowings.

The Company's income and operating cash flows are exposed to interest rate risk as it sometimes lends at variable
rates.

Interest bearing assets related to loans advanced to subsidiary amounting to Rs.236,448,714 (2021:
Rs.84,276,054) bearing interest rate of 3% to 5%.

At March 31, 2022, if the interest rates on interest bearing assets had been 1% lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 2,009,814 (2021: Rs.716,346)

lowerfhigher, mainly as a result of lower/higher interest income on floating rate interest bearing assets.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and credit exposures to receivables from related parties. For
banks and financial institutions, only independently rated partics are accepted. The Company's credit risk is
primarily attributable to amount receivable from its related parties. This amount excludes deposit on investments
as shown in Note 6.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivery of cash or another financial asset.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The company aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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31

33

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Financial risk factors (cont'd)

Liguldity risk (cont'd)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

Between | Between 2
Less than | year and 2 years and 5 years Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
At March 31, 2022
Redeemable Convertible Preference
Share (undiscounted - - 5,542,090,803 5,542,090,803
Other payables (Note 12) 1,018,967 - - 1,018,967

At March 31, 2021

Redeemable Convertible Preference

Share (undiscounted - - 5,148,369,335 -
Other payables (Note 12) 836,310 - - 836,310

Concentration risk
The Company's investments are concentrated mainly in the United States of America. The Company is, therefore,
exposed to economic risks inherent to that country,

Fair value estimation

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their

The fair value of those financial assets and liabilities not presented on the Company’s statement of financial
position at the fair values are not materially different from their carying amounts.

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

+ to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
sharehoiders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

¢ to provide an adeqate return to shareholders

The debt-to-capital ratios of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
Total debts (note 11) 4,414,801,800 3,801,775,433
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 9) (901,617) (137,351)
Net debts 4,413,900,183 3,801,638,082
Total equity 5,060,954,158 2,391,578,973

Debt-to-capital ratio 0.87:1 1.59:1
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4.1

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year as
discussed below.

{(2) Fair value of securities not quoted in an active market

(a)

(b)

The fair value of securities not quoted in an active market may be determined by the Company using valuation
techniques including third party transaction values, earnings, net asset value or discounted cash flows, whichever
is considered to be appropriate. The Company would exercise judgement and estimates on the quantity and quality
of pricing sources used. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments,

ECL on financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the ECL calculation, based
on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Limitation of sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis in respect of market risk demonstrates the effect of a change in a key assumption while other
assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. It
should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear and larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated
or extrapolated from these results.

Sensitivity analysis does not take into consideration that the Company’s assets and liabilities are managed. Other

limitations include the use of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential risk that only represent the

Company’s view of possible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty.
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6. DEPOSIT ON INVESTMENTS 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
At April 1, 243,996,445 244 970,880
Refund from subsidiary company {6,983,039) (974,435)
At March 31, 237,013,406 243,996,445
The deposit on investments are as follows: 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
3i Infotech Inc. 206,392,046 213,375,085
3i Infotech (Middle East) FZ LLC 30,621,360 30,621,360
237,013,406 243,996,445

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT & LOSS

Please refer to Note 2.3, specifically under "Embedded derivatives” , for the related accounting policies of
financial assets at fair value through profit & loss.

(a) The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are classified as follows:

Restated*
2022 2021
Rs. Rs.

At April 1,
- As previously stated : C
- Reclassification from financial assets

at amortised cost (Note 8) 4,225 515,281 3,986,183,172
- Effect of prior year adjustment (1,099,616,840) {1,307,545,938)
- At April 1 - as restated 3,125,898,441 2,678,637,234
Fair value gains 424,220,784 353,919,738
Foreign exchange difference 292,530,706 93,341,469
At March 31, 3,842,649,931 3,125,898,441
Non-Current 3,842,649,931 3,125,898,44!
Current s -

3,842,649,931 3,125,898,441
Total gains for the period included in profit or loss for assets
held at the end of the reporting period and included
in net foreign exchange gains- Note 14 292,530,706 93,341,469
The financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is denominated
in US dollars.
-US Dollar 3,842,649,931 3,125,898,441
(b) At March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

= - 3,842,649,931 3,842,649,931

ﬂ
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT & LOSS (CONT'D)
(b) At March 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
- - 3,125,898,441 3,125,808,441
(c) Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in profit or loss.
* Refer Note- 21 in respect of prior year restatement
8  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
Restated*
Non Current 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
At April 1,
- As previously stated 4,225515,281 3,986,183,172
- Reclassification to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (4,225,515,281) (3,986,183,172)
- At April 1 - as restated o =
Current 2022 2021
Rs. Rs,
Receivables from subsidiary companies {(Note 18(ii)) 300,158,656 407,207,692
Loans to subsidiary company (Note 18(ii)) 236,448,714 84,276,054
Loan to holding company (Note 18(i)) 82,375,006 61,434,066
618,982,376 552,917,812
()  Impairment and risk exposure
As at March 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no expected credit loss allowances as there are no records of
amounts written off during the past years and the Expected Credit Loss was immaterial.
(i) The carrying amounts of the financial assets at amortised cost are denominated in USD.
The rates of interest varies from 3% to 5%. The loan is unsecured and is repayable on demand.
(iii) The total amount due from related partics represents management's best estimates of the amounts expected
to be recoverable as at March 31, 2022 and 2021.
(iv) Loans to subsidiary companies, Rs.236,448,714 (2021: Rs.84,276,054) bear interest at the rate of 4% and
5% and are repayable on demand.
(v) The loan to holding company is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
Cash at bank 901,617 137,351

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

10(a) STATED CAPITAL 2022 & 2021
Number of shares
(i) Authorised Share Capital 4,005
2022 & 2021 2022 & 2021
Number of shares Share Capital
Rs.
(ii) Issued and fully paid 4,005 6,258,371,598

The total issued number of ordinary shares is 4,005 shares (2021: 4,005 shares) with no par value. All issued
shares are fuily paid.

Ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.
10(b) OTHER EQUITY

The equity components on the redeemable convertible preference redeemable shares is as follows:

Restated*
2022 2021
Balance at April 1
- as previously stated C e
- Prior year adjustments 1,072,078,780 1,072,078,780
- At April 1 - as restated 1,072,078,780 1,072,078,780
Restated*
2022 2021
Rs. Rs,
Series A (denominated in EUR) 315,373,090 315,373,090
Series C (denominated in USD) 745,051,382 745,051,382
Series D (denominated in USD) 11,654,308 11,654,308
1,072!0785‘780 1,072,078,780

*Refer Note- 21 in respect of prior year restatement
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10(c) REVENUE DEFICIT Restated*
2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
Balance at April 1
- as previously stated (3,394,943,252) {3,325,584,739)
- Prior year adjustments (1,543,928,153) {1,637,680,111)
- At April 1 - as restated (4,938,871,405) {4,963,264,850)
Income for the year 2,669,375,185 24,393,445
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,669,375,185 24,393,445
Balance at March 31 (2,269,496,220) (4,938,871,405)

I1.

(a)

(M

* Refer Note- 21 in respect of prior year restatement

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

The Company has issued those RCPS. These RCPS meet the definition of a compound instrument. The
liability component is presented in this note while the equity component is disclosed in "other equity " (note
10 (b) ). Please refer to Note 2.3, specifically under "Compound instruments" for the related accounting

policies.
Restated*
2022 2021
Rs. Rs.

Redeemable convertible preference shares (1 1(z)) 2,407,380,516 2,236,355,279
Premium payable on conversion of
redecmable preference shares (11(b)) 2,007,421,285 1,565,420,154

4,414,801,800 3,801,775,433
At April 1,
- As previously stated 3,564,119,457 3,405,509,898
- Effect of prior year adjustment (1,327,764,178) (1,272,558,440)
= At April 1 - as restated 2,236,355,279 2,132,951,458
Foreign exchange loss (note 14) 171,025,237 103,403,821
At March 31, (note 18(i)) 2,407,380,516 2,236,355,279
The redeemable convertible preference shares of no par value are as follows:

2022 & 2021 2022 2021
Number of shares Rs. Rs.

Series A (denominated in EUR) 891,631,605 597,901,062 573,034,006
Series C (denominated in USD) 1,780,361,142 1,791,915,681 1,647,176,189
Series D (dencminated in USD) 21,878,720 17,563,773 16,145,084
At March 31, 2,693,871,467 2,407,380,516 2.236,355,279

Terms and conditions
The holders shall have no right to request for early redemption.

(ii) The Company reserves the right to redeem the shares at its will.
(iii) The redemption amount shall not be less than 115% of the principal amount.
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1l. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (CONT'D)
(iv) The Company shall mandatorily redeem all the shares in each series for cash as below:
% of capital amount
shares Redemption date redeemed Redeemed in
Series A March 24, 2025 139.627% Euro
Series C March 24, 2025 141.428% Ush
Series D March 24, 2025 115% UsD

(v) (a) The subscriber shall have the right to apply for conversion of the preference shares into | ordinary share
for consideration of Rs. | each for every | preference share held, irrespective of the Series.
(b) The shareholder shall apply for conversion at any time before March 17, 2025.

(vi) The preference shares have both a liability and an equity component from the issuer's perspective. IAS 32
requires that the component parts be accounted for and presented separately according to their substance
based on the definitions of liability and equity.

The initial carrying amount of the compound financial instrument amounting to Rs.2,756,641,486 is
allocated to equity of Rs.1,072,078,780 and liability component of Rs.1,684,562,706.

The equity component is assigned the residual amount after deducting from the fair value of the instrument
as a whole the amount separately determined for the liability component.

Refer note 10(c) for equity component of the preference shares.

(b) Premium payable on conversion of redeemable preference shares Restated*
2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
At April 1,
- As previously stated 865,423,443 697,723,475
- Effect of prior year adjustment 699,996,711 530,613,834
- At April 1 - as restated 1,565,420,154 1,228,337,309
Foreign exchange loss (note 14) 119,715,483 59,548,834
Premium payable for the year (note 15) 322,285,648 277,534,012
At At March 31, (note 18(a)(i)) 2,007,421,285 1,565,420,154

(i) The premium payable on conversion of preference redeemable shares is as follows:

2022 2021

Rs. Rs.
Series A (denominated in EUR) 498,566,517 401,116,491
Series C (denominated in USD) 1,494,209,019 1,153,002,311
Series D (denominated in USD) 14,645,749 11,301,352
2,007,421,285 1,565,420,154

* Refer Note- 21 in respect of prior year restatement
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12. OTHER PAYABLES 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
BDO Audit fees 679,483 614,976
BDO - Taxation 314,782 194 441
Professional fees - International Proximity 18,008 16,298
Others 6,694 6,695
1,018,967 832,410
13, INCOME TAX
The Company is liable to pay tax in Mauritius at the rate of 15%. However, the Company is entitled to
foreign tax credit which is the higher of:
() deemed foreign tax credit of 80% of Mauritius tax charge; or
(ii) withholding tax suffered on foreign source income.
(a) Statement of financial position 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
At April 1, 113,309 128,450
Charge for the year (Note 13(b)) 274,574 128,450
Paid during the year (207,860) (143,591)
CSR 25,366 -
Under provision in previous year 94,551 -
At March 31, 299,939 113,309
(b) Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

The tax on the Company's results before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the basic rate of the Company as follows:

2022 2021
Rs. Rs.

Profit before taxation 2,669,769,674 (69,230,063)
Tax calculated at the rate of 15% (2021: 15%) 400,465,451 (10,384,509)
Expenses not allowable for tax purposes 91,964,717 13,046,613
Income not subject to tax (492,155,594) (2,471,866)
Utilisation of tax losses brought forward - 40,068
Other adjustments - (101,856)
Current tax on adjusted profit 274,574 128,450
Under provision in previous year 94,551 -
CSR 25,365 -
Net tax charge to profit or loss 394,489 128,450

As at March 31, 2022, the Company had no accurmnulated tax losses in respect of which no deferred tax asset

has been recognised due to unpredictability of future profit streams (2021: Nil).
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14. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES) Restated*
2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
Foreign exchange gain on financial assets
at FVTPL (Note 292,530,706 93,341,469
Foreign exchange gain on financial assets
at amortised cost 58,112,609 16,496,643
Foreign exchange loss on redeemable convertible
preference shares (Note 11(a)) (171,025,237) (103,403,821)
Foreign exchange loss on premium payable on
conversion of redeemable preference shares (Note 11(b)) (119,715,482} (59,548,835)
Other foreign gains 355,280 10,990
60,257,876 (53,103,553)
* Refer Note- 21 in respect of prior year restatement
Restated*
15. FINANCE COSTS 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
Premium for the year on conversion of
redeemable preference shares (Note 11(b)) 322,285,648 277,534,012
* Refer Note- 21 in respect of prior year restatement
16. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
Inter Chargeout - Margin Cost RPT 309,791 284,840
Direct Charge out RPT 1,720,518 1,581,945
Bank Charges 8,981 32,302
2,039,290 1,899,087
17. PROFESSIONAL FEES 2022 2021
Rs, Rs.
Audit fees 679,483 614,976
Legal fees 268,146 335,184
947,629 950,160
18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) The related party balances as at March 31, 2022 and 2021, are as follows:
2022 2021
() Holding company Rs. Rs.
Redeemable preference shares (Note 11(a)) (2,407,380,516) (2,236,355,279)
Premium payable on preference shares (Note 11(b)) (2,007,421,285) (1,565,420,154)
Loans receivable (Note 8) 82,375,006 61,434,066
2022 2021
(ii) Subsidiary companies Rs. Rs.
Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 7(a)) 3,842,649,931 3,125,898,441
Amount receivable (Note 8) 300,158,656 407,207,692
Loans receivable (Note 8) 236,448,714 84,276,054
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18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(b) The related party transactions during the year ended March 31,2022 and 2021, are as follows:

2022 202]

(i) Holding company Rs. Rs.

Direct Charge out (3,704,458) 1,866,785
2022 2021

(ii) Subsidiary companies Rs. Rs.

Interest income (4,390,385) (4,088,970)

(¢) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i)  Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest-free except for the loans receivable from
subsidiary companies which bear interest at the rate of 4% and 5% and are repayable on demand.

(ii) There have been no guarantees received or provided for any outstanding balances,

(ili) For the years ended March 31, 2022, the Company has not recorded any impairment with respect to amounts
owed by related parties (2021: Rs.Nil). This assessment is undertaken through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the party operates.

(v) The terms and conditions of amounts receivable and payable are disclosed in notes 7.8 and 11.

(v) The above transactions have been made on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business.

(d) No manegerial remuneration was paid duimg the current reporting period.

19. HOLDING COMPANY
The directors consider 3i Infotech Limited, a company incorporated in India, as the holding and ultimate
holding company.

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2022.

21. EFFECT OF PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has identified prior
year restatements and made necessary corrections. Restatements were made to the financial statements,
presentation and disclosures of certain transactions, in accordance with International Accounting Standard,
IAS B - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. They refer to the comparatives
for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.
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21.

(2)

(b)

EFFECT OF PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (CONT'D)
Prior year restatements are carried out in respect of the following:

Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares subscribed in 3i Infotech Inc
(Financial Assets at FVTPL)

Reedeemable Convertible Preference Shares Series B and Series C subscribed in 3I Infotech Inc were
valued using amortised cost basis.

The Preference Shares having the convertible option into equity are now valued at fair value through profit
& loss.

Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares issued to 3t Infotech Limited

Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares Series A, Series C and Series D issued to 3i Infotech Limited
were not accounted in accordance with IAS 32. The equity component arising from the conversion option
was not accounted. In the current financial year, the error was rectified as follows-

- Estimated the liability component at initial recognition by discounting the total liability (bullet payment)
using an appropriate discount rate.

- Estimated the equity component of the compound instrument at initial recognition by deducting the
liability component from the proceeds.

- Estimated the liability component as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022.

2021 ASst Ptr;vioustly Effect of Prior Year  As Restated as at

e omea Adjustments March 31, 2021

—March 31, 2021 i
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit & loss (Note 7(a)) - 3,125,898,441 3,125,898,441
Financial assets at amortised cost 4,225,515,281 (4,225,515,281) -
Liabilities
Redeemable convertible
preference share (Note [ | (a)) (4,429,542,900) 627,767,467 (3,801,775,433)
Revenue Deficit (Note 10(b)) 3,394,943,252 1,543,928,153 4,938,871,405
Other Equity (Note 10(c)) - (1,072,078,780) (1,072,078,780)

Statement of Profit and Loss

Finance Cost (Note 15) 19,150,525 258,383,487 277,534,012
Fair value gains on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss (Note 7(a - (353,919,738) (353,919,738)
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) (Note 1+ 51,319,261 1,784,292 53,103,553
Profit for the year (69,358,513) 44,965,068 (24,393,445)
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21,

(b)

22,

EFFECT OF PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (CONT'D)

Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares issued to 3i Infotech Limited

020

Statement of Financia] Position
Assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit & loss (Note 7(a))
Financial assets at amortised cost
Liabilities

Redesmable convertible
preference share (Note 11 {a})

Revenue Deficit (Note 10(b))
Other Equity (Note 10(c))

Stsﬁse::esv:tn:l?;il Effect of Prior Year  As Restated as at
1. 2020 Adjustments April I, 2020
Rs. Rs., Rs.
S 2,678,637,234 2,678,637,234
3,986,183,i72 (3,986,183,172) -
{4,103,233,373) 741,944,607 (3,361,288,766)
3,325,584,739 1,637,680,111 4,963,264,850

- (1,072,078,780) (1,072,078,780)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There are no material events after the reporting date which requires amendments and/or disclosure in the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.



